
 
 

 

 
 

 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTCONSTITUTION COMMITTCONSTITUTION COMMITTCONSTITUTION COMMITTEEEEEEEE    

    

3.00 pm3.00 pm3.00 pm3.00 pm    

 

Monday 11 May 2015Monday 11 May 2015Monday 11 May 2015Monday 11 May 2015 

 

Members' Room Members' Room Members' Room Members' Room ----    Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, 

GloucesterGloucesterGloucesterGloucester 
 

 

MEETING PAPERS 

 
 



 
 



 
 

 

Date Published 30 April 2015 

      
 

 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 
 

TIME: 3.00 pm 

DATE: Monday 11 May 2015 

VENUE: Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

 
A G E N D A 

 
ITEM TOPIC CONTACT 

1. Apologies for absence  Joanne Bolton 
 

2. Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)  
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2015. 

 
Joanne Bolton 
 

3. Public Questions   
 To answer any written public questions about matters which are 

within the powers and duties of the Committee.  The closing 
date/time for receipt of questions is 10.00 am on Tuesday 5 
May 2015.  To answer any oral question(s) put by members of the 
public with the consent of the Chairperson. 
 
Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in 
which case a written answer will be supplied as soon as 
reasonably possible after the meeting. 
 

Joanne Bolton 
 

4. Members' Questions   
 To answer any written members’ questions.  The closing 

date/time for the receipt of questions is 10.00 am on Tuesday 
5 May 2015. 
 

Joanne Bolton 
 

5. The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2015 (Pages 5 - 12) 

 

 To note the explanatory note from the Department for 
Communities and Local Government. 
 

Jane Burns 
 

6. Appointment of vice-chairs for quasi-judicial committees - 
Planning, Commons and Rights of Way and Traffic 
Regulation Order (Pages 13 - 14) 

 

 To consider the attached report. 
 

Simon Harper 
 

7. Changes to delegated powers and Appointments Committee  



 

      
 

terms of reference to reflect senior officer review (Pages 15 - 
28) 

 The revised Officer Scheme of Delegation is attached showing the 
changes in red.  The changes to the terms of reference of the 
Appointments Committee are shown in tracked mode. 
 

Jane Burns 
 

8. Monitoring Officer change to the Constitution (Pages 29 - 30)  
 To consider the attached report. 

 
Jane Burns 
 

 

NOTES 

(a) MEMBERSHIP –Cllr Colin Guyton, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, 
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, Cllr Nigel Moor, Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, 
Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Lesley Williams and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 
 

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting.  
 

(c) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect 
reports relating to any item on this Agenda or have any other general queries 
about the meeting, please contact  
 
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services  
�: 01452 425230/fax: 425850/e-mail: simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

  

 
 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



- 1 -

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Constitution Committee held on Wednesday 4th 
February, 2015 commencing at 2.00 pm.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Colin Guyton
Cllr Mark Hawthorne
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson

Cllr Nigel Moor
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen
Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive

Substitutes: Cllr Iain Dobie (in place of Cllr Jeremy Hilton) 
Cllr Paul McMahon (in place of Cllr Lesley Williams)

Apologies:

Also in 
attendance:

Officers:

Cllr Jeremy Hilton and Cllr Lesley Williams

Richard Blamey, Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel

Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer
Christine Wray, Head of Legal Services
Graham Collins, Commercial Manager
Graham Burrows, Head of Pension Fund
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser 

1. MINUTES 

The minutes of the previous meeting of 10 December 2014 were approved as a 

correct record and signed by the Chairman.

2. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions were received. 

3. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

No questions from members were received.

4. REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 

4.1 Richard Blamey, Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP), attended 
the meeting and presented the panel’s report and recommendations for the 2015-
16 revision of the Members’ Allowances Scheme.  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

4.2 Mr Blamey, on behalf of the Panel, paid thanks to the Panel’s previous Chairman, 
William Alexander, for his significant involvement in developing the current 
allowances scheme.  Mr Alexander had stood down from the Panel after more than 
10 years’ service.

4.3 Mr Blamey informed the Committee that the Panel had conducted an in-depth 
review of all matters relating to the remuneration of members.  Interviews with 22 
councillors were conducted on 6, 8 and 10 October 2014.  Members were asked 
about their roles both at the Council and within their communities; they were also 
invited to give their views on the current allowances scheme.

4.4 He explained that the Panel was of the view that the current Basic Allowance of 
£9000 undervalued the role of county councillors, and that the appropriate rate for 
the Basic Allowance should be at least £10,000, which would then be more in line 
with the level of member remuneration in other benchmark authorities.

4.5 Mr Blamey explained that the Panel had recognised the difficulties involved with 
increasing the Basic Allowance to £10,000 in the short-term, given the severe 
financial constraints being faced by local authorities.  Consequently, the IRP were 
recommending an increase in the Basic Allowance from £9,000 to £9,150 for 2015-
16.  Mr Blamey explained that this was a majority view, with one Panel member 
feeling strongly that the allowance should be set at a higher figure to ensure 
progress towards achieving the £10,000 goal.

4.6 The Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, thanked Mr Blamey for the Panel’s 
report, and expressed his appreciation for the work and time commitment involved.

4.7 After full consideration, the Committee did not feel it could support this level of 
increase when it would equate to more than the recent pay increase of Council 
staff.  The Committee agreed instead that the increase to the Basic Allowance 
should broadly be in line with the recent pay increase of Council staff.  

4.8 Cllr Brian Oosthuysen moved and Cllr Paul McMahon seconded a proposal that the 
Basic Allowance should be increased by £100 and not £150 as recommended by 
the IRP.  This would result in a Basic Allowance of £9,100 for 2015-16.  They also 
proposed that the Basic Allowance should continue to be used as the ‘building 
block’ for the Special Responsibility Allowances with the exception of the payments 
to the Political Group Leaders and Shadows which would be maintained as set 
figures.

4.9 Two members questioned why the Special Responsibility Allowances for the Group 
Leaders and Shadows did not follow the ‘building block’ principle used for the other 
allowances.  They accepted the proposal on the table for 2015-16 but requested 
that the IRP look at this in future years to prevent the allowances for Group Leaders 
and Shadows falling behind  the other allowances.  

4.10 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

(a) To increase the Basic Allowance from £9,000 to £9,100 from 1 April 2015.

(b) To adopt the Special Responsibility Allowances as amended.  (A copy of the 

revised Special Responsibility Allowances is included in the signed copy of the 

minute book marked ‘Appendix 1’).

5. PENSIONS BOARD - TERMS OF REFERENCE 

5.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 requires each Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS) to set up a Local Pension Board.  The LGPS Funds are expected 

to have agreed terms of reference in place by April 2015.

5.2 The Committee was informed that a first draft of the terms of reference was 

considered by the Pension Committee on 28 November 2014, and comments from 

that meeting along with advice from the Head of Legal had been included in the 

terms of reference.

5.3 It was reported that the final regulations on Pension Boards had now been issued 

from the Department of Communities and Local Government; the terms of 

reference had been revised accordingly.   The updated terms of reference were 

tabled at the meeting.  

5.4 Following detailed consideration, it was recommended that a series of amendments 

be made to the terms of reference to specify the involvement of the Constitution 

Committee members in the selection process of Pension Board members, and in 

any review of tenure of Pension Board Members.

5.5 The Committee also recommended that the terms of reference would be amended 

so that if there was a need for an additional meeting of the Board, this would be 

determined by the Chair of the Board, rather than the Scheme Manager.  The final 

change recommended was to remove the right of the Chair of the Board to have a 

second or casting vote.  This followed the provisions of the new regulations.  A copy 

of the amended terms of reference (showing the tracked changes) is included in the 

signed copy of the minute book.

5.6 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that 

(a) the revised Pension Board terms of reference be approved.

(b) The following consequential changes be made to the duties of the Pension 

Committee in Table 3.6 of Part 3 of the Constitution:

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

11. To consider advice and recommendations from the Pension Board on 

areas that may improve the governance of the Pension Fund (the remit of 

the Pension Board is detailed in its Terms of Reference).

12. To consider the Pension Board’s proposed business plan for the 

forthcoming financial year and annual budget request.

6. CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS 

6.1 The Committee considered the report which set out the new Contract Standing 

Orders (CSOs).  The new CSOs reflected the updated commercial roles and 

practice within the Council.

6.2 The Committee was informed of the key changes: 

Ø the language in the CSOs had been modernised and simplified; 

Ø the role of Commercial Services in high value/high risk procurement activity 

and contract management had been reflected; 

Ø value thresholds had been removed and reference made to OJEU limits; 

Ø the use of electronic tendering was now enforced through the CSOs.

6.3 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the new Contract Standing 

Orders be approved and adopted.

7. MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 

7.1 The Committee noted the amendment to the Rules of Procedure, Part 4, Section 
15.2 of the Constitution, which related to the addition of an explanatory note 
regarding the Chairperson’s casting vote.

7.2 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL to ratify the changes to the 
Constitution made by the by the Monitoring Officer under delegated powers.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 3.00 pm

Page 4



           

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

11 MAY 2015 

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 

Changes to the Disciplinary Process for the Head of Paid Service, the 

Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer. 

 

1. The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 

2015 were laid on 25 March 2015. The effect of these Regulations is to 

simplify and localise the disciplinary process for the most senior officers of the 

council, ie the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief 

Finance Officer.  They remove the requirement that a Designated 

Independent Person (“DIP”) be appointed to investigate and make a binding 

recommendation on disciplinary action against these senior staff.  

 

2. The Regulations provide that, in place of the DIP process, the decision will be 

taken transparently by full council who must consider any advice, views or 

recommendations from an independent panel, the conclusions of any 

investigation into the proposed dismissal and any representations from the 

officer concerned.  

 

3. The panel is to be made up of two or more persons who have been appointed 

as Independent Persons for the purposes of the Members’ conduct regime. 

Currently the council has engaged three Independent Persons, all of whom 

are Gloucestershire residents. Panel members must be appointed in the 

following priority order: 

 

 an independent person who has been appointed by the council and 

who is a local government elector, 

 any other independent person who has been appointed  by the council, 

and 

 an independent person who has been appointed by another council or 

councils.  

 

The purpose behind this provision is to allow local people to be involved in the 

disciplinary process for senior officers and makes councils more accountable 

to their community.  

 

4. A fuller description of the changes, and their rationale can be found in the 

DCLG Explanatory Memorandum at Annex 1. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



5. The Regulations require the council to modify standing orders to implement 

the changes no later than the first ordinary meeting of the council after 11th 

May.  

 

6. Since the publication of the regulations, there have been discussions 

nationally at the LGA about how the regulations can be practically 

implemented because, not least they affect contractual positions. It is not 

clear whether this will be through the national JNC machinery or through local 

arrangements.   It would be preferable to make the changes once this has 

been clarified. As the Annual Meeting on 20 May is a special meeting, the 

constitution changes can be deferred until the next ordinary meeting.   

 

 

 

Jane Burns 

Monitoring Officer 

Tel: 01452 328472 

Email: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Page 6



EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TO 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING ORDERS) (ENGLAND) (AMENDMENT) 

REGULATIONS 2015 

2015 No. 881 

1. This explanatory memorandum has been prepared by the Department for

Communities and Local Government (“the Department”) and is laid before Parliament

by Command of Her Majesty.

2. Purpose of the instrument

2.1 These Regulations amend the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 

Regulations 2001 ("the 2001 Regulations") in order to make provision about the 

standing orders of local authorities in relation to staff and disciplinary procedures. 

3. Matters of special interest to the Joint Committee on Statutory Instruments

3.1 None. 

4. Legislative Context

4.1 Section 8 of the Local Government Housing and Land Act 1989 (“the 1989 

Act”) allows the Secretary of State by regulations to require certain local authorities 

to incorporate prescribed provisions in standing orders relating to their staff. Section 

20 allows the Secretary of State by regulations to require certain local authorities to 

adopt prescribed procedural standing orders. 

4.2 Section 4 of the 1989 Act requires certain local authorities to designate one of 

their officers as the “head of paid service” and section 5 requires authorities to 

designate one of their officers as the “monitoring officer”. Section 6 of the 1989 Act 

and section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 require authorities to have an 

officer with responsibility for financial administration, who is referred to in the 2001 

Regulations as the “chief finance officer”. 

4.3 Section 28(6) of the Localism Act 2011�requires relevant authorities1other than 

parish councils to have in place arrangements under which allegations can be 

investigated and decisions on allegations can be made. The authority is required by 

section 28(7) of that Act to appoint an independent person whose views are to be 

sought, and taken into account, by the authority before making a decision on an 

allegation that it has decided to investigate. 

4.4  The 2001 Regulations require English county, district, and London borough 

councils, the Common Council of the City of London and the Isles of Scilly to make 

or modify standing orders to include certain provisions relating to staff and procedural 

matters. These include provision about the procedures for disciplinary action against 

1 “Relevant authorities” is defined at section 27(6) of the 2011 Act. 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

Page 7



 

 

certain senior officers, and the appointment and dismissal of the head of paid service, 

its monitoring officer or its chief finance officer. 

 

4.5 Article 16 of, and paragraph 3(2) of Schedule 3 to, the New Forest National 

Park Authority (Establishment) Order 2005 apply regulations 6 and 7 of the 2001 

Regulations to the New Forest National Park Authority, as if it were a local authority 

as referred to in the 2001 Regulations. 

 

5. Territorial Extent and Application 

 

This instrument applies to councils in England only. 

 

6. European Convention on Human Rights 

 

As the instrument is subject to negative resolution procedure and does not amend 

primary legislation, no statement is required. 

 

7. Policy background 

 

7.1 The most senior officers of a council i.e. the head of paid service, the 

monitoring officer, and the chief finance officer, have statutory responsibilities to 

discharge to their councils. Since they work with and report to the elected members, 

they discharge these responsibilities in a political environment. As a result, statutory 

protection requiring an appointment of a Designated Independent Person (DIP) to 

investigate any allegation of misconduct against these senior officers was introduced 

in the 2001 Regulations. Prior to 2001, a similar provision, but only in relation to the 

Head of Paid Service, was included in the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 

Regulations 1993 (S.I. 1993/202). The DIP is appointed early in the procedure, when 

it appears to a council that an allegation of misconduct by the relevant officer requires 

to be investigated. No disciplinary action in respect of these most senior officers may 

be taken other than in accordance with a recommendation in a report made by a 

Designated Independent Person. In practice, often the DIP appointed by councils is a 

barrister with experience of employment law. The intention of this provision is to 

ensure that these officers can discharge their duties without any fear of being 

influenced by elected members and being dismissed without good reason.  

  

7.2 There have been for some time concerns that the DIP process in its application 

to councils is in practice complex and expensive. It has placed councils as the 

employer at a great disadvantage in comparison to the position of the employee, 

particularly given that the recommendation of the DIP must be followed. The Local 

Government Association Group has estimated that the minimum legal cost of the 

process is £100,000, excluding the cost of the investigation, preparing the case and 

briefing lawyers2. The DIP process is time consuming particularly where the council 

and the senior officer concerned could not agree on a DIP, where the process can take 

over 15 months to reach completion. 

 

                                            
2 By mutual agreements – Severance payments to council chief executives. Local Government report March 

2010. This document is available at http://archive.audit-

commission.gov.uk/auditcommission/sitecollectiondocuments/Downloads/20100315bymutualagreementrep.pdf. 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

Page 8



 

 

7.3 In addition, where there are disciplinary actions against these most senior 

officers, there have been some suggestions that some councils prefer to negotiate 

severance payments rather than go through the formal DIP process. This is evidenced 

in the House of Commons Communities and Local Government Committee’s report3, 

which highlights the view of the Local Government Association witness that 

undertaking a performance management process for top staff can currently be “very 

damaging and timing consuming.” The Government believes that such a process is 

not appropriate as it defeats the purpose of having the DIP process in place. Councils 

ought to act in the best interest of local taxpayers and not be paying inflated sums to 

senior officers in order to avoid taking the costly and bureaucratic DIP route. 

 

7.4 These Regulations simplify, as well as localise, the disciplinary process for the 

most senior officers by removing the bureaucratic and mandatory requirement that a 

DIP should be appointed. In place of the DIP process, the decision will be taken 

transparently by full council, who must consider any advice, views or 

recommendations from an independent panel, the conclusions of any investigation 

into the proposed dismissal, and any representations from the officer concerned. This 

means that councils can consider and decide the best disciplinary process that will 

deliver value for money for their local taxpayers, whilst retaining independent 

scrutiny.  

 

7.5  In the case of a proposed disciplinary action against one of the most senior 

officers, the council is required to invite independent persons who have been 

appointed for the purposes of the members’ conduct regime under section 28(7) of the 

Localism Act 2011 to form an independent panel. An independent panel will be 

formed if two or more independent persons accept the invitations, and councils should 

issue invitations in accordance with the following priority order: 

• an independent person who has been appointed by the council and who is a 

local government elector, 

• any other independent person who has been appointed by the council, and 

• an independent person who has been appointed by another council or councils.  

These requirements allow local people to be involved in the disciplinary process for 

senior officers and makes councils more accountable to their community.  

 

7.6  The Regulations also make a provision limiting the remuneration that should 

be paid to independent persons on the panel to the level of the remuneration which 

they would normally receive as an independent person in the conduct regime. The 

conduct regime remuneration is a modest annual allowance or small meeting fee, and 

this approach ensures that the new process will not involve high costs. 

  

7.7 The Regulations provide for the new arrangements for taking disciplinary 

action against the most senior council staff to be given effect by councils modifying 

their standing orders. Provision is made for councils to make this modification no 

later than at the first ordinary council meeting held after the 7 May 2015 elections. To 

achieve this the Regulations come into force on 11 May 2015. 

 

                                            
3 Local Government Chief Officers’ remuneration, published in September 2014. This document is available at 

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmcomloc/191/191.pdf.  

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

Page 9



 

 

• Consolidation 

 

7.8 The Government intends to consolidate the relevant regulations regarding 

Standing Orders into a new set of Regulations, which we anticipate to include the 

preserved requirements under the  Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 

1993 (S.I. 1993/202), the 2001 Regulations, the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 

(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 (S.I. 2014/165) and these Regulations. 

However, we are unable to do this before this Parliament is dissolved. We, therefore, 

aim to consolidate these Regulations as soon as practicable in the new Parliament.  
 

8.  Consultation outcome 

 

8.1 In February 2013 we sought the views of  the Local Government Association 

(LGA), Lawyers in Local Government (formerly Association of Council Secretaries 

and Solicitors), the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE), the 

Association of Local Authority Chief Executives (ALACE), the Taxpayers’ Alliance, 

the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), the Centre for 

Public Scrutiny (CfPS), District Councils’ Network, and the Association of 

Democratic Services Officers (ADSO), over four weeks. These are the main 

representative organisations of those involved in the local government sector. Their 

views were invited on draft amendment regulations that provided for the abolition of 

the DIP process and for any dismissal decision of top officers to be taken by full 

council. Responses were received from LGA, SOLACE, ALACE, CfPS, Lawyers in 

Local Government, ADSO, CIPFA and a number of other partners, including 

councils. There was wide support for the abolition of the existing bureaucratic DIP 

process but none considered relying wholly on a full council decision would provide 

adequate safeguards for top staff against inappropriate dismissal. In May 2013, the 

Department officials met with officials from LGA to further discuss the Government 

proposals. 

 

8.2 We sought the views of these partners in December 2013 for five weeks on 

revised draft regulations which provided that any decision to dismiss top staff must be 

taken by the full council, and that full council be required to consider any report about 

the proposed dismissal which a panel drawn from members of the council’s 

independent remuneration panel (IRP) thought fit to put before the council. The 

Department received responses from most of these partners including the LGA, 

SOLACE and ALACE. Responses were also received from some councils and 

interested partners such as the Society of County Treasurers, the Association of 

Policing & Crime Chief Executives, and the Police and Crime Commissioners 

Treasurers’ Society, all of which have been carefully considered before finalising the 

Regulations. 

 

8.3 There was continous support for the abolition of the existing DIP process, as 

well as general support for a panel to make a report to the full council before a 

dismissal decision is taken. However, concerns were raised about the skill set of the 

the panel members, and the detailed prescription about how the panel might operate. 

A number of partners suggested that independent persons appointed for the purpose of 

propriety and conduct under section 28(7) of  the Localism Act 2011 would be better 

placed than members of the council’s IRP to fulfil the role of the proposed new panel 

given that their role relates to the consideration of disciplinary matters. 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

Page 10



 

 

 

8.4 The LGA, in their response, accepted that the existing DIP process has 

“undoubtedly created a process that is overly bureaucratic and time consuming”.  

Whilst they support the removal of the existing bureaucratic statutory process, their 

preferred approach was to streamline the DIP process, requiring the appointment of 

DIPs from a list of qualified independent people that the LGA would keep. They 

believed that the list, which would operate as a “taxi rank” system, would remove the 

lengthy delays created by the current process and reduce costs by introducing fixed 

rate payments.   

 

8.5 The Government accepts the view that independents persons appointed for the 

purposes of the members’ conduct regime under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 

2011 would be better placed for the role proposed. It also accepts that the proposed 

process should be simplified, leaving significantly greater flexibility for individual 

councils. However, the Government does not accept that the LGA’s “taxi rank” 

approach would be suitable. Such an approach does not support the principles of 

localism and accountability that the new rules aim to achieve, in that dealing with 

disciplinary action against top officers would not be in the hands of the full council. 

This would also continue to put councils, as the employer, at a disadvantage in 

comparison to the position of the employee. Given the extensive engagement the 

Government has had with partners since 2013, the Government does not consider that 

any further consultations are necessary and has proceeded to make and lay these 

Regulations on the basis outlined above.  

 

9. Guidance 

 

9.1  These regulations are considered to be self explanatory. There are no plans to 

provide additional guidance. 

  

10. Impact 

 

10.1  An impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument as it has no 

impact on business, charities or voluntary bodies.  

 

10.2 The Regulations simplify the processes for dismissing the most senior council 

staff, in particular putting any decisions fully in the hands of the council’s members 

who are accountable to their electorate for the decisions they take. With these new 

arrangements it is expected that the performance management of the most senior staff 

will be both more effective and efficient with potentially lower costs in the case of 

departures/dismissals than currently. 

  

11. Regulating small business 

 

11.1   This instrument does not apply to small business. 

 

12. Monitoring & review 

 

12.1  The Regulations make amendments to the existing 2001 Regulations and the 

Department does not intend to put in place any formal mechanism for monitoring and 

reviewing these Regulations. Any issue arising from these Regulations will be 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

Page 11



 

 

addressed through the Department’s on-going dialogue with the Local Government 

Association. 

 

13.  Contact 

 

Tayo Peters at the Department for Communities and Local Government 

Tel: 03034442551 or email: tayo.peters@communities.gsi.gov.uk can answer any 

queries regarding the instrument. 

 

����������	
�����
����������
���
���������������

Page 12



CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

11 May 2015 

COMMITTEE VICE-CHAIRS  

1 Introduction 

1.1 At the Council meeting held on 18 February 2015, members asked that 

consideration be given to the appointment of vice-chairs for the Council’s quasi-

judicial committees. The quasi-judicial committees are the Planning 

Committee, Commons and Rights of Way Committee, Traffic Regulation Order 

Committee and Safety and Licensing Committee. 

1.2 Situations can arise when the chair has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a 

particular application and is required to leave the meeting.  There may also be 

occasions when the chair cannot attend a meeting due to illness or other 

commitments.  This can cause some difficulty, particularly for quasi-judicial 

committees that are responsible for determining planning, commons and rights 

of way, traffic regulation order and licensing applications.    

2 Background 

2.1 Knowles on Local Authority Meetings states ‘It is good practice to appoint a 

vice-chair of a committee because there can then be no doubt who should act 

in the chair’s absence. It eliminates the need for a separate election of an 

acting chair whenever the chair is absent from a meeting (as the vice-chair 

automatically takes the chair in the absence of the chair at the meeting) and it 

provides training for prospective chairs’.   

2.2 It is usual practice for local authorities to elect a chair and vice-chair at the first 

meeting of the relevant committee in the new municipal year.  If more than one 

member is nominated, the member with the most votes will be elected.  There 

is no need to take a vote if only one member is proposed and seconded. 

2.3 The Council constitution does not currently set out the process for the election 

of committee chairs and vice-chairs.  It is therefore opportune to make clear the 

procedure for the election of chair as well as vice-chair. 

3 Recommendation 

To recommend that the Council approve a new Procedural Standing Order 28 

in Part 4 of the Constitution: 

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



28. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR BY COMMITTEES  

28.1 Council committees (other than the overview and scrutiny committees) will 

elect a chair each year at the first meeting following the Annual Meeting of 

Council.  The chairs of the overview and scrutiny committees are elected 

at the Annual Meeting of the Council in line with Overview and Scrutiny 

Procedure Rule 7. 

28.2 The Planning Committee, Commons and Rights of Way Committee, 

Traffic Regulation Order Committee and Safety and Licensing Committee 

will elect a vice-chair each year at the first meeting following the Annual 

Meeting of Council. 

Simon Harper 

Head of Democratic Services 

Tel 01452 425011 

Email simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 14



Particular Delegations to Officers 
 

Decision 

Category 

Number 

Function, duty or 

power to be delegated 

Appropriate Officer Consultation 

under 

paragraph 

5.4 

CE1 To take any decision that 

could be taken by the 

Council, the Cabinet, any 

committee or any Officer 

(provided such action is 

taken in accordance with 

the law, Rules on Access 

to Information about the 

County Council’s Business 

and the Cabinet Procedure 

Rules). 

Chief Executive. 

 

Council 

function - 

Chairman and 

Leader of the 

Council. 

 

Cabinet 

function - 

Leader of the 

Council or 

Cabinet 

Member, as 

appropriate. 

 

Committee 

function - 

Chairperson 

and Lead 

Members 

CE2 To be the Proper Officer of 

the County Council, 

Section 270(3) of the Local 

Government Act 1972. 

Chief Executive N/A 

CE3 To fill casual vacancies on 

committees, in accordance 

with Sections 15-17 of the 

Local Government & 

Housing Act 1989. 

Chief Executive Group leader 

of the political 

group entitled 

to appoint a 

Member to 

any committee 

by virtue of 

any vacancy 

that has arisen 

CE4 To be the Returning Officer 

for County Council 

elections and undertake 

the functions of the Council 

in relation to elections. 

Chief Executive N/A 

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



CE5 To permanently appoint, 

determine the terms of 

appointment and terminate 

the appointment of all staff 

(except those Officers 

within the responsibility of 

the Appointments 

Committee) under Section 

112 of the Local 

Government Act 1972; and  

 

To appoint on a temporary 

or acting up basis for up to 

one year, determine the 

terms of appointment and 

terminate the appointment 

of those Officers within 

paragraph 2 of the duties 

of the Appointments 

Committee. 

 

To appoint on an interim 

basis and for a maximum 

period of up to six months 

to the positions of those 

officers within paragraph 2 

of the duties of the 

Appointments Committee. 

 

Chief Executive Director of 

People 

Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member 

Group 

Leaders and 

relevant 

Scrutiny Chair. 

 

 

 

Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member 

Group 

Leaders and 

relevant 

Scrutiny Chair. 

 

DSF 1 To be responsible for and 

do anything required for 

the proper administration 

of the financial affairs of 

the Council. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 2 To make arrangements for 

the financing of the capital 

programme of the Council 

by borrowing, leasing or 

other arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Director: Strategic Finance Leader of the 

Council or 

Cabinet 

Member, as 

appropriate. 

Page 16



DSF 3 The functions, duties or 

powers of the Pensions 

Committee. 

Director:  Strategic Finance Chair of the 

Pensions 

Committee for 

all decisions 

with financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

DSF 4 To formulate and issue 

general guidelines to 

Officers on financial 

matters including 

insurance and the writing-

off of debts. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 5 To determine 

arrangements for treasury 

management in 

accordance with the 

Council’s policy statement 

and approved treasury 

management practices and 

where relevant CIPFA’s 

Standard of Professional 

Practice on Treasury 

Management. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 6 To make arrangements for 

the Internal Audit of the 

Council. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 7 To manage the County 

Fund and all subsidiary 

accounts and any reserve 

or other fund. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 8 To operate the Local 

Government 

Superannuation 

Regulations, including the 

exercise of discretion 

under those Regulations. 

Director:  Strategic Finance Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member for all 

decisions with 

financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

DSF 9 To implement national and 

local pay awards and 

increase payments under 

the Pension Increase Act. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

Page 17



DSF 10 To make finance leasing 

arrangements and 

authorise and make any 

other financial transaction 

including the borrowing 

and lending of money. 

Director:  Strategic Finance Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member for all 

decisions with 

financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

 

DSF 11 

To authorise the writing-off 

of stock, other than 

through fair wear and tear. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 12 To effect adequate 

insurance cover for the 

Council. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 13 To exercise all other 

functions relating to the 

Financial Management of 

the Council. 

Director:  Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF14 To acquire and dispose of 

any interest in land and 

manage the Council’s 

estate. 

Director: Strategic Finance Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member for all 

decisions with 

financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

DSF15 To manage the provision of 

information technology 

services to the Council. 

Director: Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF 16 To manage the function 

relating to Communications 

and Engagement 

Director: Strategic Finance N/A 

DSF17 To exercise all other 

functions relating to 

support services except for 

functions falling within 

decision categories DPS 1 

and 2, HLDS 1 to 3 ,  MO1 

and D:S&C 1 and 2. 

 

Director: Strategic Finance N/A 

Page 18



DPS 1 

 

 

To secure the proper 

management of the 

Council’s human resources 

except for functions falling 

within decision categories 

CE5 and HLDS 1 to 3. 

Director of People Services N/A 

DPS 2 

 

 

The functions of the Safety 

& Licensing Committee 

under paragraphs 2 and 3 

of its terms of reference 

Director of People Services N/A 

D:S & C 1 To publish standards for 

the whole Council, which 

will secure the efficient 

processing of information. 

 

Director: Strategy and 

Challenge 

N/A 

D:S & C 2 To exercise all other 

functions relating to the 

following services: 

Performance & Need; 

Democratic Services; 

Information Management 

and Archives; the 

Executive and Cabinet 

Offices; and Legal 

Services except for 

functions within decision 

categories HLDS 1 to 5. 

 

Director: Strategy and 

Challenge 

N/A 

MO1 To make payments or 

award other benefits under 

Section 92 of the Local 

Government Act 2000 

(payments in respect of 

maladministration and 

related discretionary 

payments. 

Monitoring Officer Chief 

Executive, 

Chief Financial 

Officer and/or 

Director 

responsible for 

the service in 

respect of 

which a 

payment or 

other benefit is 

awarded. 

Page 19



MO2 To amend the Constitution 

in any way whatsoever in 

order to secure compliance 

with the law and the 

convenient, efficient and 

effective discharge of any 

Council function.  Such 

amendment to be reported 

to the Constitution 

Committee and reported to 

and ratified by the full 

Council (in respect of any 

non-executive function) or 

the Cabinet (in respect of 

any executive function). 

 

Monitoring Officer Chief 

Executive and 

any Director 

whose service 

is affected by 

any 

amendment to 

the 

Constitution. 

MO 3 The functions of the 

Constitution Committee to 

advertise for, interview and 

appoint persons as 

members of an 

Independent Remuneration 

Panel. 

 

Monitoring Officer Lead 

Members of 

the 

Constitution 

Committee. 

CFO 1 To manage the operations 

of the Gloucestershire Fire 

and Rescue Service. 

Chief Fire Officer Most relevant 

Cabinet 

Member(s) or 

Chief 

Executive for 

all decisions 

with financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

CD: C & I 1 The functions of the Safety 

and Licensing Committee 

except those within 

paragraphs 2, 3, 4 and 7 of 

its terms of reference and 

decision categories HLDS1 

to 3. 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure. 

N/A 

Page 20



CD: C & I 2 

 

 

To enforce the Trading 

Standards, Food, Animal 

Health and other legislation 

referred to in the Trading 

Standards Legislation 

Master Lists A to D held by 

the Head of Legal Services  

and issue statutory notices 

in relation to that legislation 

 

Commissioning Director:  

Communities and 

Infrastructure 

N/A 

Head of 

Trading 

Standards 

 

 

Without prejudice to the 

powers of the 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure to sign 

warrants and authorise 

Officers to enforce the 

legislation referred to in the 

Trading Standards 

Legislation Master Lists A 

to D held by the Head of 

Legal Services and issue 

statutory notices in relation 

to that legislation 

 

Head of Trading Standards N/A 

CD: C & I 3 

 

 

 

To exercise the functions 

of the Commons and 

Rights of Way Committee 

as Local Highway Authority   

Commons and Rights of 

Way Committee terms of 

reference 3 to 19. 

 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure  

N/A 

CD: C & I 4 

 

 

To be the Proper Officer in 

relation to functions under 

the Highways Act 1980. 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure 

N/A 

Page 21



CD: C & I 5 

 

 

 

 

To exercise the functions 

falling within Planning 

Committee terms of 

reference 1 to 14 and 16 to 

25, except decision 

categories HLDS1 to 3 of 

this Scheme of Delegation. 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure.  

(Note:  Where the  Director 

is an Officer whose 

responsibilities include any 

aspect of the management 

of any land or building to 

which an application made 

by the Council relates, or is 

responsible for a function 

(other than as planning 

authority) materially 

affected by any planning 

matter, this power is 

delegated to the 

appropriate senior officer). 

 

Head of Legal 

Services.  

CD: C & I 6 

 

 

 

 

To exercise the functions 

of the Traffic Regulation 

Committee (terms of 

reference 1 to 12), except 

those falling within decision 

categories HLDS1 to 3 of 

this Scheme of Delegation. 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure. 

Head of Legal 

Services.  

Page 22



CD: C & I 7 

 

 

 

To exercise all other 

functions relating to the 

areas of responsibility of 

the following services: 

Development, Planning, 

Transport & Community 

Infrastructure, Road 

Safety, Trading Standards, 

Civil Protection, 

Registration & Coroners, 

Libraries and Waste 

Management except 

decision categories CFO 1, 

HLDS1 to 3 (although, in 

cases when only an Officer 

other than the Head of 

Legal Services may 

institute proceedings, the 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities & 

Infrastructure may institute 

a prosecution once it has 

been authorised under 

HLDS2). 

 

Commissioning Director: 

Communities and 

Infrastructure 

Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member for all 

decisions with 

financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

CD: A 1 The functions of the Safety 

and Licensing Committee 

under paragraph 7 of its 

terms of reference. 

 

Commissioning Director: 

Adults. 

N/A 

CD: A 2 To exercise all other 

functions relating to the 

areas of responsibility of 

Adult Social Care  except 

decision categories HLDS1 

to 3. 

Commissioning Director: 

Adults. 

Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member for all 

decisions with 

financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

CD: C & F 1 The functions of the Safety 

and Licensing Committee 

under paragraph 4 of its 

terms of reference. 

Commissioning Director: 

Children & Families. 

N/A 

Page 23



CD: C & F 2 To exercise all other 

functions relating to the 

areas of responsibility of 

Children’s Services, 

Education and Learning 

except decision categories 

HLDS1 to 3. 

Most relevant 

Cabinet 

Member(s) for 

all decisions 

with financial 

implications 

over £250,000 

 

HLDS1 To authorise the institution, 

defence withdrawal or 

settlement of any claims or 

legal proceedings, civil or 

criminal, the issue of 

cautions and to authorise 

the enforcement of any 

order made in those 

proceedings. 

 

Head of Legal Services  Director of any 

service area 

affected by 

such a 

decision. 

HLDS2 To authorise Officers of the 

County Council to 

prosecute or defend or 

appear in any legal 

proceedings (NB: The 

Head of Legal Services will 

authorise every decision to 

prosecute or defend such 

proceedings, including 

those which by law may 

only be instituted by 

another Officer). 

 

Head of Legal Services Director of any 

service area 

affected by 

such a 

decision. 

HLDS3 To authorise the 

withdrawal or settlement of 

any dispute between the 

Council and any third 

party, including those that 

have been referred to any 

statutory or non-statutory 

Tribunal or arbitrator (this 

includes authorising ex 

gratia payments not 

otherwise delegated). 

 

Head of Legal Services Director of any 

 service area 

affected by 

such a 

decision. 

Page 24



HLDS4 To be the local referee for 

disputes under the Local 

Government Pension 

Scheme. 

 

Head of Legal Services N/A 

HLDS5 The functions of the 

Commons and Rights of 

Way Committee under 

paragraphs 1, 2 and 19 or 

its terms of reference. 

 

Head of Legal Services Lead 

members 

DPH1 To exercise the functions 

conferred on the Director 

of Public Health by section 

73A of the National Health 

Service Act 2006 for the 

improvement of the health 

of the people of 

Gloucestershire 

Director of Public Health  

GEN1 To enter into any contract 

for works and the supply of 

goods and services. 

Chief Executive and 

Directors or Head of 

Service or equivalent in 

relation to their service 

areas. 

Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member for 

decisions with 

financial 

implications in 

excess of 

£250,000 

 

GEN2 To take any decision under 

the Regulation of 

Investigatory Powers Act 

2000. 

 

Directors or Head of 

Service or equivalent in 

relation to their service 

areas. 

N/A 

GEN3 To do anything that is 

required for the effective 

management of staff and 

other resources within 

each Service of the 

Council. 

 

Directors or Head of 

Service or equivalent in 

relation to their service 

areas. 

N/A 

 

  

Page 25



 

Page 26



3.2 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 
The purpose of the Appointments Committee is to enable Members to play a full role in 
deciding which persons should be employed, or not, as the Council’s most senior Officers 
and to determine terms of employment. 
 
Table 3.4:  The duties of the Appointments Committee 

 

To be responsible for: 
 
1. Recommending to the full Council the appointment (on a permanent or temporary or acting up 

basis) and dismissal of the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service. 
2. The appointment (on a permanent or temporary or acting up basis) and dismissal of the Chief 

Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer, the Chief Operating Officer, the Deputy Chief Executive, 
the Chief Fire Officer, the Director of Public Health and all  Strategic Commissioning Directors of 
Service reporting directly to the Chief Executive. 

3. Determining the terms of employment and any variation to those terms of employees of the 
Council including terms of employment and exercising employer discretions in relation to 
pensions. 

4. Subject to any other provisions of the Council's Constitution, determining any other matters 
affecting employees of the Council. 

 
 
Appointments Committee Membership: 

6 County Councillors  
 

1. At least one of whom must be a Member of the Cabinet;  
2. At least one of whom should be a Cabinet Member whose portfolio of duties 

includes responsibility for the service in which an appointed Officer would be 
employed.  This requirement should be met by a County Councillor appointed to 
membership of the Appointments Committee being substituted by the appropriate 
Cabinet Member of the same political party in order to meet political balance 
requirements.  This requirement will not apply in connection with the appointment 
(on a permanent or temporary or acting up basis) and dismissal of the Chief 
Executive/Head of Paid Service (including his or her terms and conditions of 
employment and any variation to those terms and conditions).  Failure to comply 
with this requirement will not invalidate any proceedings of the Appointments 
Committee. 

3. For decisions on the appointment of those officers detailed at item 2 in Table 3.4 
above at Director level the Appointments Committee will operate through a sub-
committee acting as an interviewing panel comprising three members (politically 
balanced) 

4. Council has resolved that for joint appointments with the NHS in Gloucestershire, 
which are within the remit of the Appointments Committee, a sub-committee should 
be established comprising three Members to be drawn from the Appointments 
Committee’s membership and shall be politically balanced. 

Note 1:  Other than suspension during an investigation into alleged misconduct, disciplinary 
action may not be taken against the Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer or 
Monitoring Officer except in accordance with written recommendations made by a 
designated independent person. 

Note 2: Reference should be made to the consultation required under paragraph 2 of the 
Officer Employment Rules to be found in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

Note 3: There is granted to the Chief Executive express delegated authority (in consultation 
with the relevant Cabinet Member, Group Leaders and relevant Scrutiny Chairman) 

Page 27



to appoint on an interim basis to the position of Director within the employment of 
the Council for a maximum period of up to six months. 

 

 

Page 28



Agenda Item 8

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015
	Annex - 150325 Explanatory Memo - Standing Orders Amendment Regs 2015

	6 Appointment of vice-chairs for quasi-judicial committees - Planning, Commons and Rights of Way and Traffic Regulation Order
	7 Changes to delegated powers and Appointments Committee terms of reference to reflect senior officer review
	Proposed amendments to the constitution May 2015 appts comm organisation changes

	8 Monitoring Officer change to the Constitution

